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NOTE

In the compilation of this work, great care has
been taken to bring it to a high standard of accuracy, and
to give to the subscribers a book containing much wuseful
information concerning the geography and commercial
facts of Delaware County. The histofy is not to be con-
sidered complete in all details, but contains the impor—h
tant dates connected with the county, giving many interest-
ng facts for all classes of the population.

In the matter of maps, we have taken especial care,
and feel that this care will prove to be of great value to the
many whom we have on our subscription lists. It will be
found that some of the smaller farms throughdut the
county do not appear on the maps, but mention will be

made of them in another place.



INTRODUCTION

¥ I * |HE beginning of any permanent institution requires wonderful tact
and business knowledge on the part of the promoters, and these
were the marked characteristics of many of the early settlers of

Delaware County.
. The work of transforming the territory included within the bound-

aries of this county, from the wild forests, with a very few acres of
tilled ground, which the Indians, in their crude way, had prepared for
their crops of maize, into the beautiful farm lands now cultivated by the
hundreds of farmers, and into the beautiful towns and villages dotting the county,
has not lain enti:ely with the_early settlers, but to them is due the credit of the
start. The hardships endured by them on account of the newness of ‘the terri-
tory, the Indian difficulties, the lack of tools and implements with which to
carry on their work, did not deter them from opening up this new field, which
since, with the untiring efforts of the subsequent settlers, has grown into a
flourishing community.

The story is the same throughout the settlement of all the townships.
Pioneers coming from the east risked their lives, and in many cases, their for-
tunes, for the sake of new homes where they could enjoy their independence in
all of its fulness. Coming from the east where civilization had reached the
highest point in America, to the dense forests of the west, was, by no means, an
enjoyable thing to do, but the ancestors of many of the best and most promi-

nent families of Delaware County thought not so much of these things, as of

the hopes of leaving to posterity the delights of a new civilization, which they
themselves had assisted in creating. ,

With only blazed trees for guide posts, these men and women pene-
trated the west where land could be purchased for two dollars an acre, land
now worth fifty and sixty dollars, facing the dangers of Indian uprisings, wild
animals and sickness, clearing the forests in order that they might be able to
raise grain enough for their subsistence. All of these things were endured over
one hundred years ago, and from the endurance of them has grown the beauti- -
ful and prosperous Delaware County. :

In preparing the historical portion of this work, we are not going into
the depths for anecdotes of pioneer life, but have taken our notes for the pur-
pose of showing the progress of the County during the first one hundred years
of its existence, in a business, religious and educational way.
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POLITICAL HISTORY

ORGANIZATION

In accordance with an act of the Ohio Legislature, Delaware County was set
aside from Franklin County, and the organization was etfected on February 1oth.
1808. This Act, entitled “An Act Establishing Delaware County”, contains the
following description of the boundaries: “Beginning at the south-east corner
of Township number three in the sixteenth range of the United States Military
District; thence west with the line between the second and third tiers of town-
ships to the Scioto River, and continued west to the east boundary of Champaign
County; thence with the said boundary, north to the Indian Boundar_\-' line;
thence eastwardly with said line, to the point where the north and souh line
between the fifteenth and sixteenth ranges of the said United States Military
District intersects the same; thence south with the said last-mentioned line to
the place of beginning”. The Act further provided that the First day of April,
1808 should be the day for legal separation to take place, and that, after the
division of the county into townships by the Associate Judges, an election should
be held on the first Monday in May, for the purpose of electing County Officials.

This election, as authorized. was held at the appointed time, and the follow-
ing men were elected to serve until the next regular fall election: Ezekiel Brown,
Avery Powers and John Welch, County Commissioners: Jacob Drake, Treasurer;
Reuben Lamb, Recorder: Solomon Smith, Sheriff ; and Azariah Root. Survevor.
The Court Officials were Judge Belt, of Chillicothe, President; Josiah McKinney,
Thomas Brown and Moses Byxbe. Associate Judges: Ralph Osborne, Prosecuting
Attorney, and Moses Byxbe, Jr., Clerk,

Justice could not be delaved on account of the absence of a Court House,
and the first sessions were held in a small cabin north of the present location of
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the Sulphur Springs. The jury retired to their “room™ among the trees, where
they were guarded by constables during their deliberations.

Criminal courts always call for a place of confinement for offenders. and
on June 17th, 1808, a resolution was passed providing for the erection of a jail
to be twelve fect wide by forty feet long, to be built of logs.‘ The contract for
the erection of this building was awarded to Addison Carver for a compensation of
$128.75. This served as a County [ail for ahout six vears, when a stone structure
was erected adjoining the residence of the Jailor, Samuel Agard. Probably during
the '40s. another jail was erected and was in use until the present building was
erected in 1878. This last building, at the time of its completion, was strictly
modern, and may be considered so yet.

In 1813 the first Court House was ordered built. This contract was awarded
to Jacob Drake, the figure being $8000. The construction was of brick and the

dimensions were forty feet by thirty-eight feet. Accordiﬁg to the terms of the

contract, the payvment for this work was provided for in a manner that would
hardly prove satisfactory to contractors of the present time. The contract was

awarded in January 1815 and the first payment of $1000 was to be made in

" April of the same year, the next $1000 to be paid at the end of 1816, and the

-balance to be paid in annual payments of $500 until the entire amount was paid.
The County’s business was transacted here until the present structure was
completed in 1868, at a cost of about $80,000.

- According to the Act which created Delaware County, the City of Delaware

was to be the seat of Justice until the Commission, to be appointed for the

First Brick House Erected in Delaware County. Erected by Col. Brown, probably in 1808

purpose of naming a permanent County Seat could make their decision. This
required much deliberation and investigation on the part of the Commission,
but in March, following the passage of the Act, Delaware was selected over other
competitors, and has since retained the honor, although for ten vears after the
final selection, the townsmen of Berkshire refused to give up the fight that their
town might finally be chosen. In fact, it has been asserted that, during the

colonization of Berkshire, Colonel Byxbe promised various persons that their
town should be selected.



Township Formations

The Associate Judges were given the authority to divide the County into
townships, and, in accordance with this authority, created three townships as
follows: “All cast of the center of the eighteenth range was made into the
township of Berkshire; all west and north of the north line of the fourth tier
of townships and a continuous line west, was made the township of Radnor; all
south of Radnor, and west of Berkshire was made the township of Liberty. It
was but a short time, however, until the creation of additional townships was
made necessary by the increasing population, ‘

At this time, Delaware County included a greater part of Union County and
portions of Marion and Morrow Counties. On June 15th, 1808, Marlborough
Township was organized with the following boundaries: “Beginning at the
south-east corner of the Sixth Township in the eighteenth range of the United
States Military Survey; thence north on the east line of the eighteenth range
to the Indian boundary line to the west line of the nineteenth range; thence
south with said west line of the nineteenth range to the south line of the sixth
township; thence east with the south line of the sixth township until it inter-
sects the east line of the eighteenth range at the place of beginning”.

Bearing the date of the next day, Delaware township was created. The
original boundaries were as follows: “Beginning at the north-west corner of
Township Five, Range nineteen of the United States Military Survey; thence

south with the range line to the center of Township Four; thence east on the
center line of said township to the center of Township Four in Range Eighteen,
to the north line of Township Five in the same range; thence west on said line
to the place of beginning. This territory included Sections one and two of Troy

Township, two and three of Brown, and two of Berlin. Sunbury Township was

formed on the same day, but was afterward divided among other townships.

The absence of funds in the Treasury of the United States at the close of
the Revolutionary war, caused the Government to allot to the soldiers tracts of

land in the west, in lieu of currency, and the portion of Ohio, in which is located

Delaware County, was used for this purpose. This caused a rapid increase in

the population, necessitating the formation of many new divisions. This crea-
tion of new townships continued until we find records of twenty-four, as follows:
Berkshire, Berlin, Bennington, Brown, Concord, Delawarej Genoa, Harlem,
Harmony, Kingston, Liberty, Lincoln, Marlborough, Orange, Oxford, Pern,
Porter, Radnor, Scioto, Sunbury, Thompson, Trenton, Troy and Westfield, Of
this number, cighteen remain within the limits of the present County, Benn'ng-
ton, Harmony, Lincoln, Peru and Westfield having been incorporated within the
boundaries of other counties, which were formed at later dates, and Sunbury

having been absorbed by other townships within the present county.

History of Townships and Villages

BERKSHIRE TOWNSHIP

Berkshire Township is located in Township Four, Range Seventeen, but at
the time of its organization in 1806 it contained Section Four of Brown Town-
ship, Section Three of Kingston, the east one-half of Berlin and Orange Town-
ships, and the west one-half of Genoa. In June, 1813, the west one-half of
Genoa was incorporated within the boundaries of Harlem, and in September,
1816, Berkshire lost two sections, which were taken up by Orange. Berlin was
forméd in January, 1820, taking two more sections from Berkshire, leaving sec-
tions two and three of the present township, three of Kingston and four of
Brown. : ’ '?;j?l

When the County was laid out, Sunbury Township was created, but has
since been absorbed by other townships, and when Kingston and Brown Town-
ships were formed, and Berkshire lost these two sections, it was reimbursed

with two from Sunbury,
The history of the settlers of this township is interesting for the reason

that, to a certain extent, they assisted materially in forming the history of the
entire county. One of the earliest of these settlers, and one of the largest land-
holders was Colonel Moses Byxbe, a former tavern-keeper of Lenox, Berkshire
County, Massachusetts. During his term of business in his home town he ac-
quired titles to about 4000 acres of land in this county by accepting the war-
rants granted -to rgyroly1ti9nar): soldiers in payment - for their board. In 1804
he came to what was then Franklin County with a number of his acquaintances,
and laid out the town of Berkshire. Here he remained with his colony for a
few years but finally went further west and, with Hon, Henry Baldwin laid out

the town of Delaware, which in 1808 became the County Seat, greatly disap-

pointing the residents of Berkshire, who, for ten years worked incessantly for
the removal of his honor to their town.

New settlers soon came and the arrival of, each was the signal for the gath-
ering to those already located, to assist in the raising of his new home.
During a home-seeking tour by Thomas Brown, of Massachusétts, he passed
through Berkshire settlement and was induced by Colonel Byxbee to locate
there. He returned to his home on the first day of September, 1804, started
with his family for their new home. The trail was clear as far as Granville, but
from there his wagons were the first to break the way.

The first brick house was ere&céd by Major Brown in Berkshire Corners,
and is still standing, in many respects the éame as it was nearly one hundred
years ago. This house was occupied by Major Brown until his death in 181%.
The first frame house is said to have been erected for David and Joseph Pierce
in 1816. '

Among the early occupations, we find that about the first enterprise to be
started was in the milling line. The first mill was erected in 1808 by Nathaniel
Hall on Alum Creek near the point where the Delaware and Sunbury Pike crosses
this stream, and combined the saw-mill, grist-mill and distillery, The art of ex-
tracting to palatable juice from the corn ranked high among the enterprises of
the da}y, and Berkshire Township, at one time, boasted of three distilleries within
its limits, the price of the product hovering about the figure of twenty cents
per gallon. '

Tanneries soon ‘hecame a great necessity, on account of the great distances
necessary to be covered in order to supply the demand for shoe and harness

leather. Among the early promoters of this business was William Myers, who
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sunk his vats in 1816 near Sunbury, followed soon after by a Mr. Whitehead,
who opened his business near Galena.

The raising of stock for a time was not carried on extensively, except as
pertaining to hogs. Iorses were in great demand, and could not be raised fast
enough. Cows were hard to raise in a healthy condition. Sheep were brought
from Kentucky by Steven Bennett and traded for hogs. At the present time,

the raising of all kinds of stock has become a great and remunerative business.

Berkshire Corners

Of the villages in Berkshire Township, the first to be laid out was Berkshire
Corners. This continued to be .the most important place in the township, until
Col. Byxbhe removed to Delaware. The first store was opened by Major Brown,
and was operated by him until his death in 1817 He was succeeded by Flavius
Fuller, who remained in business but a short time. S. S. Bemnett was also
active in business at a very early date, buying up hogs for shipment to distant
points, .

Berkshire Corners has never grown, but remains merely the corners, with
one store to supply the needs of the surrounding residents. In addition to
possessing the first brick house built in the township, this village also boasts of
a brick church bearing the reputation of being the first huilt of this material
west of the Alleghanies. This building is now used as a school house, but has,

as can be seen by the engraving, been remodeled.

Sunbury

Located near the borders of three counties, Delaware, Knox ‘and Licking,
is Sunbury, laid out in 1816 by William and Lawrence Myers. The location
is admirable for a good steady growth, and, while the town is not large, yet has
proven to be a splendid business centér, and the futt1fe prospects for the eventual
enlargement are exceedingly good.

The, ﬁrstl store within the present confines of Sunbury was owned and

operated by a Mr. Whitmore who remained in business for a short time and
was succceded by Benjamin Webb. Another store was opened by Stephen

R. Bennett, near the one owned by Mr. Webh.
In 1816, Mr. Rogers opened the first hotel, and served the people to their

entire satisfaction. Soon after, the establishment of a stage line in 1820, Lawr-

ence Myers started another hotel and soon placed the Rogers enterprise in the

background, and Mr. Rogers was forced to change his hotel to a boarding
house.

Another of the first enterprises to be started was a fulling mill by Messts.
B. H. Taylor and B. Chase, using the tread-wheel for power. Saw-mills, grist-
mills and distilleries soon followed.

Sunbury has never become an extensive manufacturing town, but one enter-
prising firm has seen the advantages of the town, and The Sunbury Co-operative
Creamery Company, is known far and wide for the excellent milk products

distributed from its plant.

Galena

To the south and west of Sunbury is Galena, laid out in April, 1816 by
William Carpenter of Sunbury, and the plat recorded under the name of Zoar.
When a post-office was established, however, it was found that there was another

office of the same name in the state, and the name was changed to Galena,

NiINg

The growth of the village has not been rapid, and it remains in about the
same that it has for many years. It contains several good stores and two manu-
facturing plants. Of these the plant of Hughes and Smythe is doing a good
business. The products of this company consist of wooden hay-rakes, horse
yokes, hand corn-planters and wagon-jacks. On an average they employ about
fifteen men, and have an output of about 2000 rakes, 20,000 yokes, 10,000 corti-
planters and 8oco wagonﬁacks.

The plant of the Galena Clgy Product Company is situated to the north. of
the village, and in this village is also found a creamery doing a good business.

Starting in life with high ambitions and a lofty name, Rome Corners, origin-
ally Rome, has been forcd to settle down to a very quict country life, with

scarcely more than the convergence of five roads to show where it sleeps.

Rome Corners

In 1838, Almon Price, a student of Roman History laid out his farm into
town lots and gave his plat the name of Rome. The town was incorporated in

1838, but later, the act of incorporation was annulled by the petition of the

. property owners. Mr. Price operated a chair factory for several years, but even

this failed to make his town a success. At present the “Corners has one church,
a few dwellings,and a splendid grove, where each fall, the people gather from

all over the county, and many from other counties to enjoy the Rome Fair,

BERLIN TOWNSHIP

Until 1806, Berkshire Township was in the shape of an L. Township 4,
Range 18, of the United States Military Survey had been divided hetween
the townships of Berkshire, Delaware and Liberty, and in 1820, Sections one
and four of Berkshire, two of Delaware and three of Liberty were formed
into a township and given the name of Berlin. The petition for this formation
was circulated by Asa Scott.

The first purchase of land was made by Joseph Constant whoy obtained from
the Government all of Section four, paying two Dollars per acre for it later
giving to David Lewis, Sr., a tract of fifty acres, upon the condition that he
settle thereon. This condition was fulfilled, but not until after George Cowgill
had made the first settlement in 1805. Closely following Mr. Cowgill, came
D;wid Lewis, Sr., his daughter Hannah, and his two sons, John and David, Jr.
In 1806, a son was born to the younger David and his wife and was named
Joseph Constant Lewis.

In the settlement of Berlin Township the stories of trials and privations
encountered by the early settlers from the east are the same as of others who
had come earlier, with the possible exception that the roads were more satisfac-
torily marked out. The Indians, upon whom the pioneers at first looked
with suspicion, soon proved to be very friendly, and mlany stories are told of
the friendly wrestling matches held between the settlers and braves.

At the time of the organziation of Berlin Township, Dr, Loofbourrow was
elected Township clerk; Joseph Eaton, Justice of the Peace; and Asa Scott, the
one who instigated the idea of a new township while he was the Treasurer of
Berkshire Township, was made the treasurer-of Beilin,  For a long time,
Rosswell Caulkins was the only carpenter and joiner in the locality. In 1820,
James Eaton tand Daniel Nettleby each erectd frame dwellings to take the
places of their log cabins. These were the first frame houses to be built in



the township. The first store was owned and operated by Nathan Sherwood,
in a cabin south of Cheshire,

As with all of the other new localities, the first industry required in
Berlin, was the mill.  Saw-mills, gri‘st—mills, distilleries and tanneries were

opened about the same time, and in many cases the four were included in one,

Cheshire

Three viliagcs furnish the Berlin populdce with small trading facilities
only one of which really deserves the name of village. Cheshire, located to-
ward the south-eastern part of the township, was laid out by Samuel Adams, one
of the most enterprising of the early land-holders. The first store was operated
by L. R. Ryant, who brought his stock from Columbus in 1847. Later he
added another room to his establishment putting in a line of shoes, and a repair
shop. In 1851 he was appointed post-master, and held the place for several
years. Like the greater part of the early villages of the county, Cheshire
hecame stunted in growth early in life, and no surgical operation has yet been
found to assist it in becoming anythifg more than what it has been for several

years.

Berlin Station

Berlin Station is what the nmame implies, a station, and is located on the
Big Four Railway. Its close proximity to Delaware has blighted its hopes of
ever becoming great. Gregory is merely the name of a point with nothing to

‘mark its existence, except the name on the map.

BROWN TOWNSHIP

In settling a new portion of the country, the pioneers'invaria,bly selected
a point on, or near a running stream of water, and Brown Township, which
is traversed in a southerly direction by Alum Creek, found its first settlement
on the banks of this stream. Some of the settlers entertained early hopes that
salt, in sufficient quantities could be found in the waters in this locality, to justify
them in drilling. Several wells were drilled, but the supply of salt water was
too small to be of any material value commercially. One company, however,
organized and leased from the state, for a period of twelve years, a tract of
one-thousand acres, and after boring about 450 feet, gave up the work, and
the land was sold to the highest bidder.

The date of the organization of Brown Township is not known. It is
known, however, that the first permanent settler in this Jocality was Daniel
G. Thurston, who came here in 1817, although, as early as 1809 Erastus Bowe
is known to have settled here with his wife and two children, but did not remain.

Mr. Thurston came originally from the state of New York, and settled
first in ‘Berlin Township, but, later, seeing better advantages »presenting them-
selves in Brown, packed his household effects and moved to this locality, where
he entered into the salt enterprise, spoken of bhefore. The business was é
faiture, but-Mr. Thurston, and one of his partners, James Eaton remained, while
Steven Gorham, the third pérfy in the busin»c;ss left and was lost to the history
of Delaware County,

Other settlers came within a short time, purchased land from the State,

and settled down to the task of clearing and raising their grain. Among these
: 2

it is well to smention the Finleys, Flemings, Longwells and Cowgills, all of which
families are still represented within the County. Charles Neil settled in Brown
Township where he taught school for a time, and was afterwards elected to the
office of County Surveyor, holding this office for a period of twenty-two years,
and in 1864 was made County Auditor by his party. He also served as Mayor
of Delaware: for some time.

Daniel Thurston was the first Justice of the Peace in the Township, Dr.
Carney was the first practicing physican.

Situated near the village of Kilbourn, is the Delaware County Infirmary.
The original tract of land, consisting of 113 ‘acres, was purchased in 1852, and
in 1854 the first building, 4oft.x140ft. in size was erected. In 1870, an addi-
tional 105 acres was purchased, making a very valuable farm for the home

of those who were so unfortunate as to be unable to furnish another,

Leonardsburg

Brown Township has two small villages within its limits. In 1852, S. G

Cautkins laid out Leonardsburg, maming the villagel in honor of its first

merchant, A. Leonard, who was also the first Post-master. Leonardshurg is

situated on the Big TFFour Railroad, about six  miles from Delaware, and is

the principal shipping point for this Township.

Kilbourn

Kilbourn, or IEden, as it is mwore generally known, is located on the

east bank of Alum Creek, near the center of Brown Township. In some re-

spects, it is in advance of its neighbor, Leonardsburg, although there is no
railroad for its utilization in shipping. The village was laid out on the lands

of Daniel G. Thurston and Isaac T.eonard. The first house was built within

the town by John Finley. William Williams, soon after his arrival in the vil-

lage, erected the first frame house. For several years, Joseph Leonard was the

only merchant in the village, but competition was soon started by Messrs, Wil-
liams and Loufbourrow.

The first saw-mill was built in Eden in 1830 by Ezekiel Longwell. A
post-office was established in the village in 1838, and the -authorities gave it
the name of Kilbourn. C, M. Thrall was the first post-master. Kilbourn is
small, but serves as a good trading point for the neighboring farmers,

SCIOTO TOWNSHIP

One of the most feritle of the agricultural districts in Delaware County is
to be found within the limits of Scioto Township. On December 7th, 1814,
this township was formed by the County Commissioners, and was to include
all territory west of the Scioto'”’Ri{r"eij, Wso;th to Mill Creek. In 1821 the
bdundm~ies were modified so as to include that portion of the county ﬁow known
as Scioto Township, with the exception of the part east of the Scioto and south
of Mill Creek. These parts were added later for fcﬁé convenience of the people
in the voting and school districts. '

The first settlement in the township is disputed. It is stated that in May,
1806, Richard Hoskins, who had come from Wales and temporarily settled in

Franklinton in 1805, came to Delaware County and settled near the mouth of
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Boke’s Creek. At ahout the same time, probably irn June of the same year,
Zachariah Stephens came and immediately began the erection of his cabin.
James McCune, with his family, entered the county i 1807, at the instigation
of Mr. Hoskins, and settled in the same neighborhood. This was the location
of what was originally called Millville, but is now known as Warrensburg,
Various other portions of the township were soon settled and these settlers have
left many descendants, who have become well-known throughout the county by
their thrift and enterprise.

In 1808 the first marriage was consummated, wwhen Robert Perry and

Sarah Hoskins were united by a minister who had traveled all of the way from .

Franklinton for the occasion, and the first death was that of Z. Williams in
1809. .

The arrival of settlers soon resulted in the laying’ out of the villages, and
Millville, or, as the place' is now known, Warrensburg, was the first to be laid
out. For a time Warrensburg prospered after the order of things in these
early days, and promised to become a thriving town. Im laying out the railroad,
however, the town was missed, and its hopes were blighted. At present we
find in Warrensburg a general store, the same old water mill which gave the
first name to the village, and a large number of carperiters, the latter deserving
mention for the reasoﬁ that, considering the size of the town, there are prob-
ably more men in this trade than in any other town in the county.

With good railroad facilities, Ostrander has becorme the largest and most
prosperous village in the township. At the time the railroad was built the town
was laid out by I. C. Buck, and named for a Mr. Ostrarader, one of the engineers
of the road. This was in 1852, and in 1875 the town {zvas incorporated. Stores
of almost all kinds were established early, and business men are now enjoying

splendid business.

RADNOR TOWNSHIP

Inasmuch as Radnor Township was first settled by a Welshman it is
natural that, in this locality, we find a very large number of families of
Welsh origin. This original settler was David Pugh, who came to America
in 1801, from Radnorshire, South Wales. In Philadelpliia he became acquainted
with Dr. Samuel Jones, who had formerly purchasec 4,000 acres of land in
what afterwards became Delaware County. Dr. Jones employed Mr. Pugh to
look up the purchase, which he did after many interesting and exciting ex-
periences, returning to Philadelphia in the winter of thhe same year.

In the early part of next year, 1803, Mr. Pugh purchased the land from
Dr. Jones, and again went west. Henry Perry, whom Mr, Pugh had previou.s—
ly met, settled on the land, which wasg located in Town.ghip 6, Range 20 of the
United States: Military Lands, later returning to Baltin-lo%e for his family, In
1804 Mr. Pugh again went west and divided his land jqto 100-acre lots, laying
out a town near the center, and named the place New Raltimore. e gave the
name of his native home to the township, calling it R.gdnor. In 1806, he re-
turned to South Wales, and upon his return to this COuntry in 1807 he hrought
many new settlers. After the war of 1812 the POPualation of this township
was materially increased by the advent of many of the veterans of the war.

The story of this township must depend necessarily upon the agricultural
interests for material. The towns of Delhi and Ney Baltimore never got

beyond their size at birth, and soon died. The building- of the Hocking Valley
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Railroad through the township, missed the location of these villages, and
struck Radnor. The town of Radnor is half a mile from the station, which
is called Meredith, and is still about what it has continued ‘to be for a great
number of years in a business way, but has taken a good start in the past
year in the building of homes, and it is now hard to tell where to place the
dividing line between Radnoer and Meredith, Radnor is also on the Colﬁmbus,
Delaware and Marion Electric Railroad, one placing it in téuch with many of
the larger towns of this section of the state, with splendid shipping and travel-
ing facilities Radnor, at the present time contains two general stores, an
elevator and mill, tile-works, saw-mill, and lime kiln. The spiritual needs
of the inhabitants are well taken care of by the four churches the Methodist,

the Welsh Congregational, the Baptist and the Preshyterian.

CONCORD TOWNSHIP

Originally a part of Liberty Township, Concord was established in April,
1819. Its original boundaries were changed many times, before the present
lines were finally e“‘srtabli‘shed, and to look at them on the map one would wonder
how they were ever determined.

George Hill is said to have been the original settler of this township,
having come here in 1811, and at about the same time, his brother-in-law,
Christopher Freshwater, purchased fifty acres adjoining Mr. Hill's land and
settled there. Others soon followed, and in a short time a large army of
settlers could be found scattered over the territory.

As in the case of all other new colonizations, a mill was a necessity, and
one of the early settlers, Colonel Sebuwrn Hinton, erected a saw and grist mill,
and established a good lumber business. In connection with his mill, he kept
a general store. The proprietqr is said to have been very illiterate, but a.
splendid business man, his record showing that he knew nothing of figures,
but used symbols unknown to anyone but himself.

Located on the west hanks of the Scioto River, and a little south of the
middle of the township is the Girls’ Industrial School, es.tabiis'hed upon the
site. of what used to be known as the White Sulphur Springs. The springs
at this place were discovered through an accident. At an early date in the
history of t‘h‘e‘county, Messrs. Davis and Richards bored for salt and after
drilling some 450 feet entered into a splendid vein' of sulphur water. Sup-
posing their work to have been a failure, they le_zft the well, and in 1842,

Nathaniel Hart purchased the land and erected a hotel and several cottages,

- renting them to parties whom the waters might relieve of their sufferings.

This property changed hands several times, and, finally, through the efforts
of benevolent citizens of Delaware County in 1869 it was sold to the State for

the purpose of establishing a home for delinquént girls,

Bellepoint
Bellepoint is the only village within the precinéts of Concord Township,
This hamlet is situated at the junction of the Scioto. River and Mill Creek.
Prospects at the start were ‘good for a substantial and growing town, but

these prospects were soon shattered, and, although Bellepoint still supports

“the store, schools and churches, yet the original lines of the town have never

been extended.



MARLBOROUGH TOWNSHIP

Originally a township of great extent, Marlborough is now one of the
smallest in the county, consisting of but one-half the area of a full-sized town-
ship, and is located at the extreme northern part of the county. The land is
well drained by the East and West branches of the Olentangy River, which
anite near the southern boundary of the township.

In 1803, the tide of emigration was strongly flowing toward Ohio, and
Nathanicl Wyatt and Nathaniel Brundige, men who had scttled in Virginia
in 1798, came with others to Franklin County, after having settled for two
vears in Clark County.

These men are said to have been the first settlers of Marlborough. That
pottion of the township in which they settled, has since been cut off from
Delaware County, and placed with Marion Couaty. After arriving at a point
about one mile north of Norton, where they established a sugar camp, and
er'ecterl a cabin, arrangements were made for returning to Clark County for
their families. This task was accomplished with some difficulty, and soon
after the return to camp, Mr, Brundige purchased a farm from Col. Kil-
bourn for $400 and erected a cabin.

The entire history of the Township is very interesting, but space will not
f)erxllit its publication. In 1808, a petition, presented by Nathaniel Wyatt
and others, was granted, allowing them the privilege of opening up a road,
passing through Norton in a northerly direction. This road remained in use
for several years and was used as a Military route as far as Sandusky.

In 1820 Robert Camphell erected and operated the first saw-mill, and
about twenty-six vears later, Luther Cone built a woolen mill just north of
this saw-mill, which has since been converted into a grist-mill.

Schaol facilities in the early days of Marlborough were very limited, but the
. settlers were not to allow their children to grow up in ignorance, and steps were
immediately taken to organize a school in the northern part of the township.
Flere in a log school-house, thechildren, overcoming all sorts of difficulties, mast-
ered the rudimments of the principal studies, reading, writing and arithmetic,
All of the difficulties of these early days are overcome, and school4houses
now dot the township in all parts, and are presided over by competent teachers,
who are instructing the younger pupils in the three principal studies, and

many of the higher branches as well.

Norton

Marlborough township contains but one town, Norton, laid out in 1806 by
James Kilbourne, Samuel H. Smith, William C. Schenck, John Cummings and
John Barnett. Within the town, lots were set aside for State and County or

- town buildings: for the erection of the first church to be constructed in the
township and for school purposes. The first cabin was erected by William
Reed, the first mercantile enterprise was started by Mr. Case. Today, the
town is still small, but comparatively prosperous, with the advantages of a

railroad, the Columbus, Sandusky and Hocking branch of the Pennsylvania
Lines.

- LIBERTY TOWNSHIP

Lying south of Delaware Township, and extending to the south line of

Delaware County, is Liberty Township, one of the three original sub-divisions

of the county. Originally, it comprised nearly one-half of Orange, Berlin,

" Delaware and Scioto Townships, all of its present self, and all of Concord

township. At various times, portions were used in the making up of these
other divisions, leaving Liberty in its present peculiar shape, comprising an
area from four to five miles wide and about eight miles long.

Liberty township is traversed in a southerly direction by the Olentangy
River, into which flow several smaller streams, and a portion of the west
boundary is made by the Scioto River. The territory is dotted throughout
by some of the finest springs known in the county. While the land is rolling,
yet it is considered as good as any in the entire county for agricultural pur-
poses, and this consideration is borne out by the sight of beautiful fields of
grain and the meadows that are seen along the roads in any part of the
township.

Perhaps it was a wonderful fore-sight, or intuition, that caused Nathan
Carpenter to select this section of the new wilderness, in which to make the
first settlement in what was soon to be known as Delaware County. At any
rate, on the first day of May, 1801, he with other young men, arrived in this
locality, and immediately began preparations for the erection of the first cabin

in the county. During the next spring, Mr. Carpenter’s settlement was en-

Vlarged by the arrival of two other men, upon whom are bestowed the honors

of having assisted in creating and organizing Delaware County. These were
Thomas Cellar and Josiah McKinnie, both men of wealth, who were to show
their influence over others, in a short time. These men, with a Mr. Powers,
who came with Mr. Carpenter, now made up the settlement, and each was
unéglﬁsh enough to help the othérs make life worth living, despite the hard-
ships, Indians and wild animals,

In 1804, John, Ebenezer and Aaron Welch came to Liberty from the
state of New York. These men were the ancestors of several of the best-

known families in the county today..

In the same year, Captain ‘Carpenter erected the first mill in the county,

a combination of saw and grist mill. It was but a short time until other mills

were erected in all parts of the township, many of which are still standing. The
ﬁrst’bridge was built across the Olentangy where this stream is crossed by the
road leading to the Sulphur Springs. The first road was the one now known
as the River Road. The first school was taught by Miss Lucy Carpenter, in
the first cabin erected by Mr. Carpenter, and which served as his home during
the first few months of his life in this place.

From 1811 to 1826, David Thomas kept a tavern which he had erected
on the west bank of the Olentangy, and this place was utilized as a “stop-over”
by parties traveling between Sandusky and Franklinton; for several years.
George Dean opened up the first store in the township in 1830, and operated it

for a few years, when he sold out, and the store was soon closed up.

Powell

In 1849, a post-office was established at Union, a hamlet consistiﬁg of a
store and a very few people. The store and post-office were short-lived, and
the town was no more. Later, however, another office was established at Hall
Corners, where Thomas Hall had opened up a small store, and, as Judge
Powell, of Delaware, had been instrumental in securing this office, the place

was named for him, and has since been known as Powell.
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Powell has continued to live, and has been materially assisted in so
doing, by the presence of the Hocking Valley Railroad which passes through
the town giving good shipping facilities to and from the Ohio River and Iake
Erie. The town was laid out upon the lands of A, G. Hall in February,

1876, and the plat recorded in March of the same year,

Hyattsville

Henry A, Hyatt is responsible for the existence of Hyattsyille. He laid
out this village February 6th, 1876, about the same time that Powell was
was platted. A post-office was established here in 1877, with Mr. Hyatt as
post-master. Ed Nalz is said to have been the first merchant. The town is
well located for shipping, and it is from here that the greater part of the
supplies for the Girls' Industrial Home are received from the Hocking Valley

it
Railroad. R

ORANGE TOWNSHIP

Without the necessity of a repetition of the stories of hardships on the

part of the early scttlers, one can see the influx of the new-comers at all times,

suffering the same inconveniences. the same long hard journies, building their

rude homes under the same difficulties, Nevertheless, those who had come to
this new country were constantly urging others to cast their lots with them,
and assist in building up a progressive community where all could enjoy the
same privileges, paying for them with their own hard and unceasing labors.

This urgent and incessant work on the part of the first settlers, and of
those coming later, soon increased the population of the county to such an
extent that new townships were rapidly being formed.

In 1816, Alpha Frishy headed a petition asking that a new township, taking
in Sections two and three of Liberty, and one and four of Berkshire, be
formed. This petition was granted, and the name of Virgil was given to it.
Classic names and hard labor refused to get along well together, and within
a week, another petition, asking for a change of name from Virgil to Orange
was presented and granted. '

In 1807, Joab Norton, who had been induced by his wife and others,
joined an expedition to Ohio, and built the first cabin in Orange. A tanner
by trade, he sunk vats at Worthington in November, and waited as patiently
as possible for custom which never came. His failure to make a living at
Worthington, induced him to hunt other fields, and he finally struck north
and purchesed 150 acres of land and built his home. Here he again ventured
into the tannery business as a side line, attending to his duties on the farm at
the same time. Mr. Norton was soon followed by others seeking new hores,
among them being Eliaphlet Ludington, who came from Connecticut in 1808,
buying land from Dr. Delano in Section 3. ILater came William and Joseph
Higgins with their families.

In July, 1808, Mr. Norton made a business trip to his former home, and
upon his return, settled in the town of Delaware, again engaging in the tanning
business. He later organized a rifle company which was called into service to
assist- in the protection of the frontier from hostile Tndians. While in camp
on the lakes, his health became impaired, and he died in Delaware in July, 1813.

Shortly after the settlement by Mr. Norton, another stream of secttlers
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entered the township and built homes along Alum Creek.  Among the carliest
of these scttlers were Samuel, James, Paul and John Ferson, who came in 1819,
In 1820 John Nettleton erected and operated the first saw-mill, which, in 1835,
was changed into a grist mill,

Williamsville, one of the early villiages in Orange Township, started, like
many others in new territory, to be a city of magnitude. In 1835, Anson Wil
liams purchased one thousand acres in Section three and at once began prepara
tions for the creation of a city. He erected a frame building and opened up 2
hotel, combined with a store and liquor house. Other building operations fol-
lowed immediately but the fact that a hotel already existed a few miles north
of Mr. Williams™ house seriously interfered with the advancement of business
in Williamsville, and put a stop to all hopes of prosperity in the village. A
Mr. Saulsbury, who assisted Mr., Williams in his efforts toward the
success of Williamsville, has been given the credit'for the establishment of
the first manufacturing plant in Orange. He, with Truman Case. obtained
from the Penitentiary authorities, the privilege of making grain cradles, and

the firm continued for some time, turning out a superior grade of goods.

Lewis Center

Lewis Center is the most important village in the township. Situated
on the Big Four Railroad, and the Columbus, Sandusky and Hocking branch
of the Peunsylvania Lines, it has splendid facilities for imports and exports.

John Johnson is named as the first settler in this locality, and McCoy

Sellars as the first merchant. At present Lewis Center contains the usual

stores, churches and shops, and hoasts of good school facilities.

East Orange

East Orange . O. was the product of trouble realized by the railroads in
establishing a depot in Lewis Center. A site was secured in this place for a
depot and a post-office, but were soon abandoned, leaving nothing but the
name, Orange, which is more conspicuous on the map, than the village is on

the ground.

GENOA TOWNSHIP

Lying to the east of Orange Township, to the west of Harlem, to the south
of Berkshire and to the north of the Franklin County line, is Genoa Township,
so named by Elisha Bennett, for the town of Genoa, Italy. This is known as
Township three in Range seventeen. Flowing south through a portion of the
township slightly to the east of middle, is the Big Walnut, and a short distance
to the west of the middle is a high portion of the land, known as the Ridge,
which divides the water courses between the Big Walnut on the east and Alum
Creek on the west.

To Jeremiah Curtis is given the credit of having made the first settlement
in Genoa. He came from Connecticut in 1804. In 1805 he settled in Berkshire,
and in 1800 came to Genoa, settling on lands bought from Col. Moses Byxbe,
Soon after his arrival he built a saw and grist mill and disﬁllery. In 1807, John
Williams, a methodist minister, settled in this locality, dividing his time between
clearing his land and preaching. During the same year, Joseph Latshaw came

from New England and settled in the northern part of the township. Mr.



Latshaw sold out all of his interests in 1810 to Hezkiah Roberts, who is known
as the first blacksmith in the limits of Genoa Township. In 1807, came David
Weeks from New York State, and William Cox from Pennsylvania. Others

came rapidly, and soon Genoa became a busy agricultural center.

Genoa has no villages, nor even a post-office. Maxwell Corners was lad
out as a village, but efforts to malke it a success were failures. A post- -office was
established at Genoa Cross- roads, but was afterward removed to Maxwell, and
soon after, upon the resignation of the post-master, the office was abandoned.

HARLEM TOWNSHIP

Harlem was organized in 1810 from a portion of Sunbury, and contains

16,000 acres of good farming land. The drainage of this land is made through
the smaller tributaries of Big Walnut, and throughotit the !tO\VnShlp, are
found numerous good springs. Among these streams worthy of mention are
Spruce Run, Spring Run, ‘Duncan Run and Rattlesnalke Run. These springs
and runs are admirable for the watering of stock and drainage of the land,
although, for the latter purpose, some ar tificial d1a1n'1g<, is required in some
parts of the township.

Harlem is known as the third township in the sixteenth range, and is
located in the extreme south-eastern corner of the county, adjoining Franklin
county, which lies to the south, and Licking County, lying to the east.

One of the first land owners in Harlem was General Nathaniel Greene, a
man well known as heing one of the greatest Generals in the Revolutionary
War., One thousand acres in the second section were granted to General Greene
in payment for his services during this war, and, at his death in 1786, the land
fell to his heirs, who allowed it to be sold for taxes. About 1850 the surviving
heirs conveyed their interests to various parties.

Among the early settlers of this township, are mentioned a Mr. Duncan,

who purchased the four thousand acres located in Section three. The purchase -

was made in 1803, and four years latter was sold by the sheriff, to Benjamim
Cook for 42 cents per acre. Mr. Cook soon sold 3.500 acres to Col. Moses
Byxbe, retaining 500 acres for his own use, and in 1807, the year of the pur-
chase, he brought his family to Harlem, and was elected the first Justice of the
Peace in the township.

In 1808, Stephen Thompson settled as a squatter in Harlem. During -the
next year, 1809, Rev. Daniel ‘Bennett came with his family from Pennsylvania.
Elijah and John Adams, brothers, also came to Harlem in 1809. .

John Budd, who still has a large number of prosperous des¢endants in the
county, came to Harlem in 1810. Vermont became representéd in the township

in 1809 hy the arrival of Benjamin M. Fairchild.

Villages ,
Two villages have been laid out in Harlem. :Centerville, located at the
exact center of the township, was laid out in 1848 by Edward Hartrain and
Benjamin Roberts, and Harlem village 1s located south-east of Centerville.

Neither village has ever shown any signs of‘:a healthy growth.

THOMPSON TOWNSHIP
Sitwated in the northwest corner of Delaware County, to the west of Radnor

and to the north of Scioto, is Thompson Township, thriving entirely by agri-

cultural pursuits. This township was organized as a separale division on the
sth day of June, 1820. The lands of the township are drained by the Scioto
River and its tributaries. The Scioto forms @ part of the eastern boundary.
The most important of the smaller streams, or runs, are Tulton's Creek and

the Tau Way Run, the former named in honor of one of the early hunters of

this district, and the latter after an Indmn Tribe, formerly living in this neigh- -

borhood. Portions of the township were formerly wet and swampy, but drain-
age has overcome this feature, and the land is now in prime condition for farm-
ing and grazing.

1 Samuel Weaver is known as the first settler of this territory, having been

induced, by glowing accounts of the land in Delaware County, to come here

from his home in Chillicothe. With the assistance of his neighbors in Raduor
Towriship, he raised his cabin and remained here until his death.

Soon after Mr. Weaver’s arrival came Michael Dilsaver, who scttled in
the southeast corner of the township. In 1817, James Cochran arrived, settling
near the mouth of Fulton’s Creek, where he erected his cabii. In 1827 he
erected and operated the first grist mill in the township, near his home.  John
Swartz moved to the settlement in 1818 from Pennsylvania. Simeon Lindsley
and John Hurd located, in the same year, near Swartz. At about the same
time Roswell Field, a carpenter, settled near Dilsaver’s Ford. In addition to
being the first carpenter in the new settlement, Mr. Field was the first to be
clected to the office of Justice of the Peace. These men with their families and
Samuel Broderick and Joseph Russell, constituted the‘ entire population of
Thompson Township for several years.

Tt has been stated before that James Cochran built the first mill in 1327,
and in 1830 Jacob Swartz erected the first saw mill.  J. W. Cone built a woolc'n"
mill in Thompson Township in 1844.

The first bridge was built over the Scioto, co1111écﬁing Thompson and Rad-

nor Townships, in 1869. The first school house was a log cabin on Fulton’s

- Creek, with James Crawford as teacher. Isracl Waters operated the first tannery

near the old Pickerell mill, starting in 1845. Joseph Cubberly was the first
blacksmith, opening his shop in 1812.  Joseph Cox offered the first stock of
goods to the purchasing public. John Detwiler opened the first tavern and
liquor store, operating them for a period of about thirty years. Thomas T.av-
ender erected the first brick kilns and for sevmal years supplied the neighbor-

ing settlements with this bu11d1ng material.

The nearest approach to a village in Thompson Township was what was

once known as Pickerell’s Mill. The effort to build up a metropolis was un-
successiul.

TROY TOWNSHIP

Troy Township is responsible for the loss to Marlborough of 16,000 acres
of its original territory. This township, adjoining Delaware on the north, was
organized on the day before Christmas, 1816, and is known as Townships 5 and
6, Range 19. Watered by the Olentangy and its smaller tributaries, Troy fur-
nishes abundant advantages for agriculture, which is the only pursuit that can
be followed, as the township contains no villages, and the inhabitants are sup-
plied with their mail by the rural mail carriers go-ing out from towns in the

surrounding townships.

Having been formed from land formerly within the bounds of Marlborough,
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the early settlers of each may .be considered the same to a great extent. Joseph
Cole, one of the earliest settlers in this territory, arrived here in 1808, and pur-
chased a tract of 640 acres, upon which he settled, and portions of this land

are now in the possession of his descendants,’

To name all of the early pioneers, and to give a biographical sketch of each

would be exceedingly interesting, but space forbids, and mention of but a few
can be made,

David Dix, a native of Vermont, came to Delaware County in 1807, and
settled in Liberty Township temporarily, later removing to Troy Township
where he leaves several descendents. Levi and William Hinton came from Ken-
tucky. Judge Duncan arrived in 1810 from Virginia, Comfort Olds, Nathan
Roach and Pierce Main soon followed. James Norris entered and settled in
Troy Township in 1814. The Main family, consisting of several branches bear-
ing the family name, was first represented by Sabeers Main, a native of Connet-
cut, who although never having lived in the state, furnished seven sons to help
build up the community. These were ']".‘inlothy, Sabeers, Eleazer, John, Jonas,
Thomas and LLyman. FEleazer, the first to c;ome, arrived in 1813, the others
coming at various times thereafter.

Benjamin Martin came from Virginia in 181 5. Others came and went, Troy
Township increased rapidly in population and the land was prepared for the rais-
ing of the necessary crops, until it now stands in its proper place near the head
of the merit list of townships in one of the most beautiful and prosperous counties
in the state,

Why one should care who were the first to engage in various business oc-
cuputions in a new community, is difficult to understand, but it is certain that the

- first must be the beginning of all things to come, and the prime factors are
really the most important of all things.

William Brundige was the first Minister of the Gospel. Thomas Gill was the
fi.st blacksmith. Joseph Cole built the first grist and saw mill and was the first
to be elected to thé office of Justice of the Peace. David Bush built the first and
only distillery. No stores were ever. attempted in the township.

On June 8th, 1808, a petition praying for the construction of a road along

the west bank of the Olentangy River was granted, thus connecting Norton with

Detaware and southern points. The first bridge was built in 1840.

OXFORD TOWNSHIP

Oxford Township was once a part of the original Marlborough Township,

and-is well drained by the Olentangy and tributaries. The settlment of the town-
ship was started at an early date, but for many years, the grow‘th whas slow. In-
crease in population came more rapidly, later, however, and now the township is
made up of farms of medium size, Where are found splendid crops of grain.

In 1810, the first settlement was méde in the north-west quarter by a Mr.
Olds, fhe father of Comfort Olds. He was soon followed by Henry Foust, who
located near Mr. Olds. William T. Sharp and David ‘Kyrk dame to Oxford soon
after, and built homes in the north-western portion of the township.

In the same year, 1810, Andrew Murphy began a settlement in the south-
eastérn part of the township, followed within @ short time by James McWilliams,
Hugh Waters, Henry Riley and Henry Wolf. Robert Brown was the first settl-
re in the section now occupied by Ashley, he having built his cabin within the
present limits of this village. Ralph and John Slack, brothers, and several others

came to this section scon after, and have left many descendants.-
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The southwestern quarter of the township was deeded to John Rathbone,
This tract, consisting of 4000 acres, remained intact until his grandson, Hiram
G. Andrews, came into possession of it, when it was divided into 100-acre lots
and sold.

Milton Pierce and Henry Riley were the first to engage in the milling
business. They erected, at the junction of Basin Creek with the Olentangy, a
mill where they carried on the business for several years. George Claypool
started a tannery in 1824, near Windsor 'Corners. The first frame building was

erected in 1840, and was used as a residence by FHenry Foust.

Ashley

Ashley is the only town in Oxford Township, and is located on the Big Four
Railroad, near the northern boundary of the township and County, and was laid
out by L. W. Ashley and J. C. Avery, on their lands. It was originally called
Oxford, but was later given the name of one of its original owners. At the time
the village was platted, it contained sixty-nine lots, but this ntmber has been
greatly increased, and Ashley now is quite an extensive village, In 1850, the
year succeeding the platting of Ashley, a small store was started by Lewis Pur-
mort east of the village, and was later removed to the village. In the same year

Mr. Purmort associated himself with Milton Smith and built a saw mill on the

‘grounds of the Railroad Company. William B. Belknap built the first frame

residence in 1850. Many other business enterprises were begun soon, and the
village took on an air of prosperity, and is now one of the few enterprising and

growing villages in the county.

i~
KINGSTOWN TOWNSHIP

Kingston Township, sitnated in Township 5, Range 17 of the United States
Military District was organized on June 8th, 181 3, and is still in the same shape
as at the time of its formation. . No business of any kind, mside from farming
in its various branches, is carried on in this township. Mills were started, but
have not been working for several years.

Little is known of the first settlers, or of the first settlement. But the time
was about 1807, and John Phipps was probably the first to arrive in Kingston.
George Hess-came about the same time, and settled near Mr, Phipps, remaining
until the time ot his death, nearly thirty years later. Shortly after the arrival

of Mr. Hess, came Abraham and James Anway, natives of Pennsylvania. In

. 1812, the cosmopolitan population of the new county was enlarged by the ar-

rival of Peter Van Sickle. His farm lay on the west side of Big Walnut, and
adjoining the south side of the township. '

John Van Sickle came about three years later and settled in the eastern part
of Kingston. This branch of the family is still represented by members bearing
to Kingston. During the next year, 1815, the Benedict fomily, members of which
are still in the county, hecame represented by the arrival of B‘énjamin Benedicet,
who cleared his farm and lived there until his death at the age of 88,

~ Several years before the arrival of Mr. Benedict, representatives of the
Stark and Rosecrans families settled in Kingston. These were James Stark,
John Rosecrans, with his four sons, Nathianiel, Jacob, Purlemas and Crandall,
All came in 1809. Daniel Rosecrans was the granfather of one of the greatest
Generals engaged in the War of the Rebellion, Major General William Stark

Rosecrans,



General Rosecrans was the eldest son of Crandall Rosecrans, and was born
on Taylor Run in Kingston, on the Gth day of September, 1819, but soon after
this time, his father left Delaware County,and located in Licking County. In
1838, William was appointed to a cadetship at West Point, graduating from this
school four years later, when he was made a professor of Civil Engineering -at
the Academy. After some years of teaching, he resigned from the army, and
entered a business life, but at the opening of the Civil War, he offered his ser-
vices to the Union, and was appointed Colonel of the twenty-th'rd regiment of
the Ohio Valunteers by Governor Dennison. Soon after this appointment, he
was made Brigadier General, and still later was given a commission as Major
General. All through the war he showed himself to be thoroughly adapted to
h's duties of disciplining his men, and formulating his moves on the battlefield.

Other settlers came to Kingston during the early life of the township, from
many of the Eastern and Southern States. Of these, it is essential to mention
Thomas and James Carney, who arrived in Kingston at an early date. Thomas
came first, settled on his farm and died there in 1860, at the age of OF years.
Tames was born in 1797, and died in 1830, leaving four sons. Of these sons,
Theodore was the oldest, and died in the prime of life. ~ The second son was
Thomas, born in 1824. He became one of the most prosperous buginess men
in the state, being for a time, the senior member of the firm of Carney, Pen-
dleton and Smith, of Cincinnati.  In 1857, Mr. Carney went to Leavenworth,
Kansas, where he engaged in business. ~When Kansas was admitted to the
Union as a étate, hie was elected to the Legislature, and during the first year
of the war, was elected Governor of the state.

Kingston has the name of being one of the cleanest townships, morally, in
the county ; the peoplé stand by each other in all things; the physicans have very
" few calls from the sick, and all in all, the people are as well-to-do and free from

care, as is possible in any community.

PORTER TOWNSHIP

Again we find no absolute record of the date of organization of a township.
Porter was probably formed about 1826 or 1827, but the exact date is unknown,
The name was given to this Township in honor of Robert Porter of Philadel-
phia, the purchaser of the four thousand acres in Section three. The Township
is known as the fifth township in Range 16, and is in the ektreme northeastern
corner of the County:

It would be difficult to say much regarding the value of the agricultural
lands in Porter. The Township is dotted in evéry part with splendid springé,
and is thoroughly drained by numerous runs ;Lnd creeks, which carry the waste
water from all parts to the Big Walnut Creek. This creek traverses the Town-
ship from north to south near the western boundary. A great part of the land
lies along these streams, .thus beihg especially weli adapted to the raising of
grain of all kinds.

Very little can be said of the early history of the Township, although it is

the youngest in the County. Records of settlements in chronological order are

difficult to obtain.

Mention of a few of the early settlers of the Township will be made in a
condensed way. Robert Porter secured the ﬁrstwpatent for land in this locality,
his papers calling for four thousand acres in Section three. This document
was signed by John Adams, President of the United States, and was dated March

21, 1800. Mr. Porter never made Ohio his home, but came here occasionally

to look after his interests. There are indications that scitlements were made
on this land by squatters as early as 1807 or 1808, but the settlers never did
anything worthy of record.

Section four was deeded to the heirs at law of Iugh Folmes and Robert
Rainey, who lived at this time, in Ireland. This was in 1817, Twenty years
later the land was transferred to George C. Bumford of Washington, D. C.
Before the end of the year Mr. Bumford deeded the tract to John W. Wordeu,
who in turn sold one-half of it to Benjamin Brown, of Knox County, in 1833
This finally put the land at the disposal of parties desiring to settle here, and
among the first to take advantage of this were Daniel Pint, Timothy Meeker
and Timothy Murphy.

The southern part of the Township was settled in 1810, when Peter and
Isaac Plan arrived. In 1817 came Christopher and Thenezer Lindenberger, lo-
cating near the present site of Olive Green, followed soon after by IFestus
Sprague and Edward Mason.

Judge Porter sold to Thomas Mendenhall 300 acres of land on Big Walnuat,
who gave it to his son Joel. In 1819 Joel came to the land and erected his
cabin. The platting of the large tracts of land into smaller tracts \'\"us pro-
gressing, and, as the new settler was an experienced surveyor, he was kept busy
at this work.

Thus we could follow on down the years from the beginning to the present,
naming ‘hundreds who have benefited the community by their presence, and
who have probably heen henefited by their association with others, but in con-
clusion must say that, while Porter was the last of the townships to be formed,
its place, from the standpoint of importance, does not deserve the place at the
end of the list.

Olive Green

Olive Green, the first village platted in the Township, was laid out on the
lands of Christopher Lindenberger and Festus Sprague, about one-half mile
west of the Big Walnut. The town is still in cxis'tenc,c, but is no larger than

at birth. James N. Stark was the first postmaster, and Christopher Lindenber-

~ger, one of the original proprietors of the town, was the first merchant. Since

the advent of the Rural Free Delivery System the postoffice has been aban-

doned.

East Liberty

Five years after the platting of Olive Green, [East Liberty was laid out by
William Page, Jr., on his farm on the east bank of Big Walnut, but fared no

better than, and possibly not as well, as Olive Green,

TRENTON TOWNSHIP

Mention has been made of Sunbury Township, one of the carly divisions
or the county. "I'renton represents the remains of Sunbury Township, after por-
tions were used in the formation of others, and, as there was a town called Sun-
bury in Berkshire, the name was changed to that of Trenton, in honor of the
home town of one of the early settlers, It was in 18106, the year of the forma-
tion of Genoa, that Trenton was left in i’ts present form,

Trenton’s water-ways are few. Cutting along the north-west corner is
Big Walnut, which serves the purpose of carrying off the surplus water, with

the aid of the smaller streams,
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The settlers of Trenton came principally from the eastern states, and with
them, came the nucleus of an educated community. So far as records.show, the
families of William Perfect and Mordecai Thomas were among the first to
settle in this township, having come in 1807. Bartholomew Anderson represen-
fed Kentucky in the new community by his arrival in 1810. During the year
prior to this, a settlement was made by ]ohn‘ Culver and Michael Ely, followed
soon after by John Williamson. In 1811, John Ginn and William Ridgeway
erected their cabins, and began the preparation of their lands for farming.,

Of importance among the latter arrivals are mentioned James and Owen
Hough, who came from Pennsylvania. New Jersy contributed a portion of her

populace to Trenton in 1817, when Gilbert Van Dorn arrived. Mr. Van Dorn

was the first to open a tavern in the township, operating it and adding to it until -

required by his increasing patronage to erect @ brick building. This is said to
have been the first brick building erected in Trenton. In connection with the
tavern, he operated the first store in the township. John Leak, also from New
Jersey, canre soon after the arrival of Mr, Van Dorn, and in 1820, Silas Ogden,
from the same state, arrived and started the first tannery.

The first saw mill in the township was built and operated by Middleton
Perfect and Hazard Adams in 1835. The lack of villages of any consequence
in Trenton, makes the history of this township brief. Condit is the seat of the

only post-office in Trenton, and is situated a trifle to the north of the center.

DELAWARE TOWNSHIP

Delaware Township was organized in June, 1808. At the time of this
organization, it included all of Township 5, the northern one-half of Township
4, Section 3 of Brown and Section 2 of Berlin. The formation of Townships
later, reduced this area to an ordinary sized township—ifive miles square. Still
later, in order to reimburse Concord Township for its loss to Scioto, a portion,
consisting of one square mile, was released from the south-west corner, leaving
the Township in its present form.

No other township in Delaware County is better drained than Delaware.
Traversing it from the north to the south, is the Olentangy river, while its tribu-
taries, flowing from the east to the west, are admirable for perfect drainage. Al-
though this assists in making the township a splended agricultural center, yet
farming is, by no means, the principle industry. The township containing the
county-seat, is also the home of the Ohio Weslyan University, one of the 1eading
Methodist schools in'the United States, making the section an educational cent-
er of great importance.

In 1800, Abraham Baldwin purchased a tract of 8000 acres in what are now
Brown and Delaware Townships. At the time of his death, in 1807, this proper-
ty was divided between his half-brothers and half—sistérs, and, later, fell under
the control of Henry Baldwin, a Pittshurg lawyer, and one of the heirs. Mr.
Baldwin then associated himself with Colnel Moses Byxbe, and, together, they
laid out the town of Delaware on the east bank of the Olentangy River. This
site, however, was soon abandoned, and another plat was made of land lying on
the other side of the river, where the main part of the town now stands.

To John Beard is given the credit of making the first setflement in
Delawate Township, his land being at the south line of the township, and on

fhe west bank of the Olentangy. This was in December, 1807, Here he
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erected his cabin, and during the next spring he assisted in erecting a log
mill and constructing a dam néar his cabin. In 1811 Mr. Beard sold out his
interests to Colonel Forest Meeker, a native of Vermont. Mr. Meeker kad a
hewn log house erected, and brought his family to their new home during
the next spring. vIt took but a short time for other settlers to be induced to
take up their homes in this new country, and assist in making Delaware Town-
ship the most prosperous in the county.

The history of Delaware Township, so far as the agricultural listricts are
concerned, does not vary from that of all of the other townships, except that
conveniences, such as mills and stores were closer at hand, and more easily
accessible than in some other parts of the county. Consequently the history

of this section naturally centers in Delaware, the metropolis, and county-seat

of the county.,

Delaware

The story of the founding of Delaware has been told. Having large
holdings of land in Delaware and Brown Townships, Col. Byxbe, with Mr
Baldwin, laid out the city on the east bank of the Olentangy River, but, finding
the opposite side afforded better advantages, removed to that side where the
clearing of the forests had already been begun by the Indians. The platting
of this portion of the city was done during the latter part of February, shortly
after the selection of this site for the county-seat by the Comunissioners, and
included about the same territory as that now covered by the eastern section of
the present town. Regardless of Col. Byxbe’s promises to the people of
Berkshire, he worked hard for the placing of the county-seat at this place, and
Wwas soon rewarded for his efforts. In May of this same year, 1808, the transfer
to the west side of thc river was made, the original plat dividing the town into
186 lots,

For some time, Col. Byxbe was the moving spirit in the town, and to him
and his unceasing efforts, may be attributed the happy and prosperous growth
of the village in its early days.

The first settler within the limits of Delaware is said to have been Joseph
Barber, who built his cabin to the south-east of the sulphur spring. These
same springs were expected, for a time, to make Delaware a great watering-
place, but the project failed.

From the time the town was platted it has grown, with a slow but steady
growth, and has now reached a point where it is excelled in few ways by other
towns of the same size in the state. Further remarks concerning the early

history of the town are superfluous, as they apear in other places, and our

interest in the town of the present will bé better satisfied by reviewing the

existing conditions,

The city of Delaware has never been: considered a manufacturing town,
although there are many manufacturing concerns of more or less importance,
that deserve a place in this work. Of these, perhaps the most prominent are
the cigar manufacturers, and of these, the largest is the plant of Riddle, Graffw
& Co. located at No. 10 N. Sandusky Street. At this plant, which is owned
and operated by Messrs. C. Riddle and L. W, Battenfield, from 120 to 1 50 em-
ployes are kept busy throught the year, making a high grade of five and ten
cent cigars. Their products, consisting of from five to six millions of cigars
annually, reach nearly all of the United States,

Next in importance in this line, is J. Hessnauer & Co., 86 N. Sandusky
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Street, established in 18%. This Company employs about thirty-five people,
and have an output of one and one-half million five and ten cent cigars each
year.

Grasser and Haas, 134 N. Sandusky Street, are makers of the same
grade of cigars, and with the assistance of ten men, distribute about 500,000
cigars throughout the State of Ohio.

William and Charles Wells form the company known as Wells Brothers,
200 South Street, and manufacture about 100,000 five and ten cent cigars
annually, the output being confined principally to Delaware.

William Hanitsch, 44 Eaton Street, is a maker of five cent cigars, 50,000
of which are used yearly in Central Ohio,

The great outi)ut of cigars requires a large number of cigar boxes, and
in 1896, C. M. Ulrey started a factory for the manufacture of these boxes at
17 West William Street. Here he manufactures cigar boxes of the first grade,
at the rate of 500 daily. His product is sold principally throughout Central
Ohio.

For a period of twenty-three years the Delawa}e Chair Co. has been manu-
facturing all kinds of chairs, their goods being shipped to all parts of the
country. This company was incorporated in 1885, and has a capital stock
of $150,000. R. G. Lybrand is President and Treasurer, and A. Lybrand is
Vice-President and Secretary of the company.

The demand for Mission furniture for the home and office has given rise
to the establishment of the Denedict Mission Furniture Company, ‘located on
South Union Street. Here can be found some splendid designs in all kinds
of mission goods for all purposes. They also carry on a general furniture
repair business.

The clay to be found near the south-eastern part of Delaware has been
found to be of a peculiarly well fitted sort for the manufacture of all kinds of
clay products, and just outside of the city limits is located the Delaware Clay
Manufacturing Company’s plant. This is an incorporated Company, having a
capital stock of $250,000, with L. L. Dennison as President and J. F. Dennison
as Secretary and Treasurer, with offices at No. 7 Ne\\j York Cash Building.
Hollow brick and drain tile are made at this plant, where seventy-five men
are employed, yielding an output of 1,500 car-loads annually.

At 236 East William Street is located the office and plant of the Delaware
Branch of the National Fireproofing Co., makers of fireproofing and drain tile,
and retailers of sewer pipe. This company is incorporated under the laws of
Pennsylvania. The officers are W. R. Henry, President; J. P. Robins, Treas-
urer; and C. G. Jones, Secretary. R, W. Seanor is the manager of the local

branch
Three lumber companies furnish the major portion of the building materials

for the city of Delaware and surrounding parts.

The McKenzie Lumber Company operate a saw-mill and sucker-rod fac-
tory at Delaware, and retail all kinds of lumber. This company operates
sucker-rod and handle factories at Springfield, Norton and West Mansfield.
At the Delaware vards from four to five million feet of lumber are handled
yearly, and about 36 car-loads of sucker-rods are made and shipped.

Clark and Battenfield own and operate a lumber yard and planing mill at
the corner of South Sandusky and Railroad Streets. Here they manufacture
hollow c011c1:ete blocks of all kinds, doors, sash and blinds, and handle a general
line of building materials.

At the intersection of the Hocking Valley tracks and West William Street
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are located the offices and yards of the C. C. Dunlap Lumber Co., owned and
operated by C. C. Dunlap, manufacturer of all kinds of hard and soft lumber,
and a large quantity of wagon stock.

Toward the south-western part of Delaware is located the J. K. Wylia
Stave und Hoop Co. Of this concern, J. K. Wylie is the manager and J. C.
[reeman the assistant manager. The company manufactures hoops and staves,
employing about thirty-five men, who, with a capacity of about 5500 hoops
and 35,000 staves.

The domestic supply of flour is furnished to the citizens of Delaware by
the Electric Roller Milling Co., whose mill is situated at the corner of South
Sandusky and Railroad Streets. This company, of which E. F. Gwynn is
president and general manager, J. G. Rosenthal, vice-president, and T. J.
Griffin secretary and treasurer, are makers of a high grade of flour of which 70
barrels constitute a day's output. Their products are shipped to nearly every
part of the state.

Condensed milk and butter are made by the Delaware Creamery Co., of
which W. Z. Evans is the general manager. Their place of business is at the
corner of Last Winter and Lake Streets. From 600 to 800 pounds of butter
are made daily. This firm does a jobbing business in sweet cream, also.

From twelve to fifteen tons of ice are made daily at the plant of the
Delaware Ice and Coal Co., on East Central Ave. Willard Gallagher,
President and General Manager; I. P. Hills, Treasurer and W. B.
Gallagher, constitute the official ‘staff of this company. In addition to the
manufacture -and “distribution of ice, the company also do a retail business
in coal.

The Delaware Underwear Co. was organized in 1902, and in 1003 was
incorporated. Their factorv is on South Sandusky Strect. Here they make

a high grade of ladies’ ready-to-wear goods, and since their organization have
been able to report a very healthy growth in business. W. A. Morrison is

President, J. L. Anderson, Secretary. The capital stock at present is $50,000.
L. C. Hills is the proprietor and operator of the Sanitary Rug and Clean-
ing Company, with works at the corner of Union and Fountain Avenue. The
product of this factory consists of fluff rugs made from old carpets. Cleaning
of rugs and draperies is also done by compressed air.
The manufacture of gas ranges and heaters in Delaware was commenced
this year, when the Sunray Stove Co. was incorporated with the following

officers: Tresident, S. S. Blair: Vice President, B. W. Hough; Secretary and

Treasurer, M. C. Russell; General Manager, O. D. Hunt. About 6,000 stoves

constitute the annual output.

The Cook Motor Co. located at the junction of Oak Hill Ave., and the
Hocking Vallev tracks, was incorporatevd in 1902 with a capital stock of $50,000.
W. C. Dennison is President, C. C. Steadman, Secretary and General Manager,
and T.. I.. Dennison, Treasurer. About twenty-five men are employed in mak-
ing gas and gasoline engines of all kinds and sizes, which are in use in all
parts of the world.

One of the latest organizations formed in Delaware for manufacturing
purposes is the Delaware Bridge and Iron Co., which was incorporated in
1908, with a capital stock of $25000. Steel bridges, viaducts, fowers, tanks,

structural steel work, store fronts, lintels, columns and re-inforced conecrete

will he manufactured at their shops on Tast Central Avenue. The officers are

L. B. Dennison. President and General Manager: O. C. Hearing, Vice-Presi-

dent; W. C. Dennison, Secretary and Treasurer.



The Square Deal Manufacturing Company was incorporated February
27th of the present year, with H. F. Owen as President and Manager,
J. J. Neville, Vice President, A. S. Conklin, Secretary and Treasurer, and L.
Trabue as Superintendent. They will manufacture belt power hay presses at
their temporary place of business and later will build a new factory, where
they will manufacture hay presses: and traction engines.

The traveling public is considered by the proprietors of the various hotels
throughout the city of Delaware, and accommodations of all grades may be
found.

Principal among these hotels is Hotel Donavin, located at the corner of
Sandusky and East Winter Streets. This house is owned by the Hotel Donayin
Co., Incorporated, and is operated by J. E. Dow and Son. The house contains

sixty guest rooms, eight of which are equipped with bath. The plan is Ameri-

can. Rates from $2.00 to .$3.00 per day.
At the corner of West Winter and Franklin Streets is located the Franklir

Hotel, owned and operated by Mrs. Frank Coyner, This is also on the Ameri-

can plan. Twenty rooms with public bath. Rates $1.25 to $1.50 per day.

The Delaware House is located opposite the Big Four depot on Lake Street
This house is owned by the Schlitz Brewing Co., of Milwaukee, ‘and is‘operated
by A. C. Krauskopf, on the American plan. Twenty-four roonis, one bath,
Rates $1.00 to $1.50.

C. M. Beaver, proprietor and manager of the Eagle Hotel, 105 ast Winter
Street, has seventeen rooms to offer for the use of the public, at the rate of $1.00
per day. American Plan.

Callahan and Welch own and operate a Hotel and rooming-house at 20-31

East Winter Street. Twenty rooms, European plan. Rates, $1.00 per day.

Delaware County in the Wars

Delaware County was situated on the frontier and all communities so sit-
uated were called upon many times to shoulder their guns and march against
the Indians, for they were not always friendly, and often resented the white
man’s effort to wrest their lands from them. The protection of their own
homes was only a part of the warfare endured by these pioneers, however, for
depredations were continuous throughout the border lands, and more than once
these men were called, or offered their services in assisting their neighbors in
their struggles against the Indians.

Some of the men had served in the Revolution and had settled on lands
given them in payment for their services during this war, and the knowledge
gained stood them in good stead after their arrival in the wilderness.

When in 1812, the second great war of the country was declared, Delaware
County furnished its men to the fullest limit. A company of cavalry was or-
ganized with Elias Murray as Captain and James W. Crawford as Lieutenant,
and several companies of infantry were also organized. One infantry company,
commanded by Captain Drake, made a name for itself, that will take years to
outgrow. The story of “Drake’s defeat” is known by all, but has never heen
quite equalled in any of the later troubles, for the genuine cowardice exhibited
by the First Lieutenant of the company.

At the time of the declaration of war by Mexico in 1845, General Hinton
commanded a brigade, consisting of one battalion of artillery, one squadron of
light dragoons, one battalion of infantry and one regiment of riflemen. These
men passed a resolution, and through their leader offered their services to their
country. Ohio was called upon to furnish three regiments during this war, but
none of the men from Delaware County were sent, except the few who had
joined other military organizations than those under General Hinton.

Patriotism was one of the marked characteristics of the men of Delaware
County, as well as of all other Americans, and when the call for troops came
at the beginning of the Civil War, the men of this section responded nobly, fur-
nishing one or more companies for each of seventeen regiments recruited in this
vicinity. Of these seventeen regiments we will merely make mention,

The Fourtjh Regiment was organized at Camp Jackson, in Columbus, and
contained two companies from Delaware County. Company C was recruited
by its Captain James M. Crawford, with Eugene Powell as First Lieutenant
and Byron Dolbear} as the Second Lieutenant. When the company was mus-

tered into service it was found that there were too many men and these mep

were turned over to Lieutenant Powell, who returned to Delaware and gathered
together enough more men to form another company. This company was mus-
tered in as Company I, and was officered by Captain Eugene Powell, First
Lieutenant A. W. Scott and Second Lieutenant William Constant.

The Twentieth Regiment was represented in Delaware County by Co. D,
recruited by C. H. McElroy, and upon being mustered in was assigned as Co.
G, and, later, upon recruiting to the full number, was again assigned as Co, D.
Of this company C. H. McElroy was chosen Cﬁptain, V. T. Hills First Lieuten~
ant and Henry Sherman Second Lieatenant. In 1862, Captain McElroy was
appointed Major in the 96th and Lieutenant Fills was made Captain,

The Twenty-sixth Regiment was organized at Camp Chase in 1861, and
mustered into service during the summer of the same year. Co. C of this
regiment, was made up of Delaware County men, and was officered as follows:
Captain, Jesse Meredith; First Lieutenant, E. A. Hicks and Second Lieutenant
William Clark. )

The Thirty-first infantry contained a few men from this county, Company
E having been partly made up here, their second lieutenant being Milton B.
Harmon, of Berlin Township, -

Company I of the Thirty-second was recruited from Delaware County ma-

terial, in 1861. Company G of the 45th, Company B of the 48th, Companies E

and K of the 66th, Company I of the 82nd, afterward united with a part of the
61st and called the 88th, Companies T and G of the 96th, all were made up of
Delaware County men. k

The 1715t Regiment contained four companies, principally recruited from
men in this county. These were Companies C, D, H and IX. The 145th entered
the service in 1864 to serve one hu1ﬂred days, and was designated as the Na-~
tional Guards, with all material from Delaware County, while one company of
the 174th was organized by Delaware County men.

In addition to the wbove regiments ,and portions of regiments formed in
this county, the sth Colored In_fantry was organized here.

Thus We see that ‘_‘cbpuszin‘ds of men '1e'ft“”trl>1mc;;nhomes in Delaware County,
main. Of those who survived and are now living in this county and vicinity,

the following list will show. It will be seen that all in the list did not enilst in

- Delaware County, yet they belonged to the regiments partly or wholly re-
cruited here,
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NAME
Barler, Barney
Beach, William
Beech, Theron A.
Bell, Daniel
Carmichel, Albert
Crawford, Jas. M.
Durfey, Benj.
Fritz, Wm. B.
Hart, Wm. T.

Howald, Wm. A.

Olney, John A.
Stark, Thomas
Said, Presley H.
Scott, Jas. S.

NAME
Bell, Daniel
Dustin, John A.
Hills, V. T.
Longwell, N. T.
Perfect, Leroy

Worline, Danijel

NAME
Clark, William
Slack, Leroy R.

NAME
Jennett, W. F.

Burton, Noah
Dixon, Walter L.
Hunnis, Joseph
Mather, J. D.
Strait, Henry J.

NAME
Blauvelt, Alonzo
Cole, Chas.
Fravel, Gilbert
Irwin, D. S.
Mullen, Elijah
Roush, Peter
Spaulding, A. J.
Seeley, Robert
Weeks, Oscar

TweNTY-ONE

ENLISTMENT GIVEN BY REGIMENT

4th Regiment

ADDRESS
Delaware
Delaware
Stratford
Radnor
Sunbury
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Declaware
Sunbury
Delaware

Sunbury

20th Regiment
ADDRESS

Radnor

Galena

Delaware

Kilbourne

Sunbury

Delaware

26th Regiment
ADDRESS
Lewis Center

Delaware

31st Regiment
ADDRESS

(Galena

Galena

Galena

(Galena

Magnetic Springs

Delaware

32nd Regiment
ADDRESS

Delaware

Kilbourne

Westerville

Sunbury

Galena

Ostrander

Ashley

Ostrander

Galena

RANK
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Captain
Private
Private
Sergt.
Private
Private
Private
Private

Private

RANK
Private
Private
Captain
Private
Private

Sergt.

RANK
Lient,

Private

RANK
Captain
Private
Private
Private
Private

Corp.

RANK
Sergt,
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
1st Lieut.
Private

Private
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NAME

Heinlen, Abram

Matthews, George W,

Spearman, John

NAME
Harroun, Franklin
Harrison, Bateson

Wells, Samuel

NAME
Hill, Edward
Willis, J. B.
Willis, Rollin K.

NAME
Courter, P. F,
Davis, David S.
Hodges, ]. B.
Powell, William
Pool, William H.
Rhoades, Joseph B.
Rhoades, Alva M.
Smith, John M.
Salisbury, L. F.
Swartz, Jacob
Stottlemeyer, Daniel
Van Deman, J. D.
Wehster, George P.

NAME
Bowdle, Jos. A.
Freshwater, Arkason
Hedges, W. B.
Henry, Geo. W,
Kelley, Henry C.
Slough, C. J.
Winston, T. J.

NAME
Frizzell, Joal
Gardner, Lewis
Jaycox, Charles
Lugenbeel, DeWitt

43rd Regiment

ADDRESS
Sunbury
Sunbury

Sunbury

45th Regiment

ADDRESS
{zalena
Hyattville

Radnor

48th Regiment

ADDRESS
(Ostrander
Stratford

Delaware

66th Regiment

ADDRESS
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware
(zalena

Delaware
Powell

Delaware
(Galena

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Hyattville

82nd Regiment
ADDRESS

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Galena

Ostrander

88th Regiment

ADDRESS
Westerville

Ashley
(Galena

Delaware

RANK
Private
Private

Private

RANK
Private
Private

Private

RANK
Private
Private

Private

RANK
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Corporal
Sergt.
Sergt.
Private
Private
Private
Lieut.

Private

RANK
Private
Private
Surgeon
Private
Private
Private

Private

RANK
Private
Private
Private

Private
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Moore, George
Nelson, William
Prosser, William
Paddock, G. E.
Thompson, John
Shoemaker, Adam S.
Shoemaker, Jacob
Welch, George

NAME
Case, T. W.

Dixon, William O.
Freeman, T. A.
Gammell, S. S.
Harbottle, James
Hummel, Henry
Main, Henry Bliss
Oldham, J. G.
Walbert, Beenebel
Waldron, C
Townley, W. W,
Webster, Wm. H,
Smith, Horace F.
Slattery, Michael

NAME
Cullins, Henry B.

Cunningham, J. S.

Dickerman, Fdward P.

Dwinnell, C. P.
DeWitt, Chas. A.
Furnis, E. A, _
Fleming, Sidney
Foulk, S. S.
Fish, Solemon
Hall, Edward M.,
Jones. Lanson
Kohler, Chas.
Livingston, A. R,
Lott, D. E.
McMaster, B. F,
Martin, James
Mann, Joseph T.
McClain, James .
Meeker, A, J.
Modie, Martin G.
Nelson, Samuel
Nash, O. F. .
Newhouse, Alex

Newhouse, Adam

Galena
Leonardsburg
Sunbury
Delaware
Galena
Ashley
Ashley
Ashley

06th Regiment

ADDRESS
Powell

Delaware
Radnor
Sunbury
Sunbury
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Sunbury
Sunbury
Delaware
Lewis Center

Westerville

121st Regiment

ADDRESS
Delaware

Ashley
Galena
Sunbury
Lewis Center
Galena
Leonardsburg
Sunbury
Ostrander
Delaware
Delaware
Ashley
Leonardsburg
Sunbury
Leonardsburgl
Hyattville
Galena
Ashley
Ostrander
Columbus
Leonardsburg
Ostrander
Ostrander

Ostrander

Private
Private
Sergt.

Private
Private
P'rivate
Private

Private

RANK
Private

Private
Private
Sergt.

Sergt.

Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private

Corp.

RANK
1st Sentinel

Private
Private
Private
Private -
Private.’
Private
Corp.
Corp;
Private-

Corp,

- Private

‘ Sergt.

Private
CorI;.

Private
Private
Private
Private

Private

Private

Private
Private

Private

)
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Ostrander, Jacob
Patten, William B.
Ryant, F. L.
Searles, Theodore P.
Scott, Albert M.
Smith, Herman C.
Shoemalker, William
Shoemaker, David
Scott, John

Van Houten, Chas. W,

Whitney, R. W.
Waters, B. I.
‘Wheeler, Herman J.

NAME
Beard, R.
Burcil, A. R,
Black, Frank
Bishop, Levi
Blymyer, Chas.
Colflesh, Jacob C.
Carson, Cicero T.
Cone, John A,
Crawford, Chas. D.
Clark, John
Conklin, Martin
Crumb, Sydney W,
Dunham, Ampudia A,
Diiney, Edward
David, B. F.
Elshbree, Geo. F.
Elshree, Augustus C.

Edwards, Joseph

F reshwatér, Archibald
Feaster, George
Glaze, Williaim

Griffiths, J. R.

Hinkle, M. H.
Hall, Amos
chald, Jacob
Houtz, David F,
Huntley, Albert
Ingle, William
Jones, W. W.
Lumbert, Wesley
Lasher, J. J.
Leady, John D.
Lloyd, Benjamin
Moore, Samuel A,
Moore, William .
McWilliams, Smith

Ostrander
Delaware
(zalena
Sun’bux;y
Delaware
Delaware
Ashley
Ashley
Centerburg
Galena
Sunbury
Leonardshurg

Norton

145th Regiment

ADDRESS
Sunbury

Delaware
Galena
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Powell
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Lewis Center
Galena
Delaware
Dela‘;zvare
Radnor
Delaware
Delaware
Radnor
Delaware
Delaware

Norton

Radnor

" Delaware

Hyattville
Delaware
Ostrander
Ostrander
Norton
Radnor
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Radnor
Delaware
Delaware

Delaware -

Corp. -

Sergt.

Sergt.
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Sergt.
Sergt.

- Private

Private

RANK

Private
Private
Sergt,
Private
Private
Private
Sergt,
1st Lieut.
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Private
Captain
Private
Private
Sergt.
Private
Private
Corp.
Private
Corp.
Private
Corp,
Private
Private
Private
Private

Private

Adjutant ‘

Private
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Mayfield, A. B, Delaware Private C
Main, Madison Delaware Sergt. C
Martain, Jas. W. Delaware Private C
Main, Lemuel Delaware Corp. C
Martain, Nehemiah Delaware Private C
Main, Marion Delaware Private C
Martin, Sabeers Leonardsburg Private C
Owens, Thomas Delaware Private A
Perry, G. W. Delaware Private K
Patten, William C. Delawrare Private K
Patterson, Milo Galena Corp. H
Post, John J. Galena Lieut. H
Phinney, Russell Westerville Private H
Roberson, William Sunbury Private H
Robinson, A. R, Radnor Private A
Stanforth, Geo. R. Delaware Corp. H
Saunders, E. P Delaware Private H
Sherman, Frank Delaware Corp. A
Sackett, J. L. Delaware Private H
Silverwood, Horace A. Delaware Private C

%

FIRST BRICK CHURCH BUILT WEST OF ALLEGHENY MOUNTAINS

Utz, John F. Delaware Corp. A
Utz, A. R. Radnor Private A
Veley, John Delaware 2nd Lieut. C
Wiatkins, J. W, Radnor Private A
Wolfley, G. T. Radnor Corp. C
174th Regiment

’ NAME ADDRESS RANK CO.
Brown, Leonard Ashley Private ~ H
Bram, Michael Delaware - Private H
Bash, Thomas Richwood Private B
Carnes, Samuel Greencamp Private I
Davis, Lewis W, Radnor - Private I
George, B. J. Ostrander ‘Chaplin I
Hazleton, Wayne Delaware Private H
Hines, Alfred Sunbury Private H
‘Rolson, Michael Westerville Private H
Word, P. L. Delaware Corp. H
Wherry, John Galena Sergt. H

Many of the first settlers of Berkshire were Episcopalians, from the New
Fngland States. David Prince, a man of wealth, education and influence, started
lay-reading in his own house. It sooa outgrew the accomodations and was trans-
ferred to the log school-house that stood about sixty rods west of the corners.
A classed Sunday school was started, which, with the exception of the one at
Marietta, is said to have been the first in the State, The Church was organized

by the Rev. Philander Chase, afterward Bishop of Ohio. Preparations for the

TweNTY-THREE

building began early, but it was not until 1827 that much was done. It was con-
secrated in 1839 by Bishop McElvane.

For years, its influence for Christian morality and education was very great.
In connection with it, a building was erected for a select school. Among its
pupils were such men as Thomas Carney, the War Governor of Kansas, and
Preston B. Plumb, a formere United States Sectretary.

Years passed, and deaths and removals left the chtirch without-a congrega-
tion, and it was afterward sold for use as a school.
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Y. M. C. A. BUILDING

In the spring of 19os, several of the young men of Delaware conceived the
idea of organizing a local branch of the Young Men’s Chrigtian Association.
They immediately put their idea into force, prepared a petition which was cir-
culated among the business and professional men of the city, and in an incred-
ibly short t'me secured enough signatures to guarantee the success of the move-
ment Efforts were at once begun to secure a suitable home for the organization,
and, after a spirited contest between them and the proprietor of a saloon, who, at
that time occupied a portion of the building, for the control of Hotel Blee, the
voung men won out, raised the necessary $20,000 for the purchase of the buil l-
ing, and are now in full possession.

At a mass meeting of the citizens, fifteen incorporators were chosen and
Captain V. T. Hills was made the first President. He was succeeded on Jan-
nary 15, 1900, by Mr. W. A, Morrison and Edwin F. Young was made secre-
tary. 'During this year the building was completely remodelled according to

plans calling for reading rooms, writing rooms, club rooms, gymnasium, game

parlors, baths, and, in short, complete details for carrying on of the general

Association work, were carried out.

TweENTY-FIVE

On the first day of January, 1907, complete possession of the building was
secured by the Association, and Mr. Oscar M. Miller, formerly the assistant
secretary of the Toledo Association, was appointed general secretary. Under
Mr. Miller's able direction, the Association has out-classed many of the larger
associations in the state, and now maintains a well equipped gyvmnasium, bowl-
ing league, tub, sponge and shower baths, a boys’ club, the Commercial Club
headquarters, a glee club of twenty male voices, a boys’ orchestra, rooming
apartments for men, a night school covering many of the technical branches, a
Sunday afternoon Bible class, and a training class for the male Sunday school
teachers of the city.

Three of the departments have been greatly strengthened during the past
few months by the addition of assistant heads of the departments. The asso-
ciation now has a membership of nearly five hundred men and boys. Mr. John
Handon is at the head of the social department; C. A. Duff is the physical di-

rector and Frank E. Gates is the boys' director.
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JANE CASE HOSPITAL

EAST DELAWARE SCHOOL BUILDING

i

BIRTHPLACE OF RUTHERFORD B, HAYES



COTTAGES---GIRLS’

INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL

SCHOOL BUILDING---GIRLS’ INDUSTRIAL SCHOOL




SECTION II

Maps of County, Townships, Towns
and Villages
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